

CHRISTIAN ACADEMY

"Train up a child in the way he should go and when He is old he will not depart from it." **Proverbs 22:6**

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

"The Lord gives wisdom: out of His mouth comes knowledge and understanding."

Proverbs 2:6

PARENT/STUDENT HANDBOOK KINDERGARTEN, ELEMENTARY & HIGHSCHOOL K4, K5, GRADES 1-12 Website: ocagh.org

P.O. BOX 6513 Kumasi, Ghana Email: oasischristianacademy@yahoo.com Phone: 032-203-7630

2022-2023 Academic Year

Dear Parents and Students:

It is with sincere devotion to God's Word and to the cause of training this generation to embrace the responsibilities, that we present to you this expression of the philosophy and standards of Oasis Christian Academy. For 23 years now we have been training young children to become Christian leaders who will move into every man's world with the character and destiny of God invested in their lives. The bible tells us in Proverbs 22:6 that we should "train up a child in the way he should go and when he is old, he will not depart from it." We believe that this is what Jesus commissioned us to do and to this cause, we dedicate all that we do.

It is our pleasure to serve you in this ministry by providing your child with a "home away from home."

As you read this handbook, we join you in your effort to see this become your reality.

In His Service,

Maxine A. Buckman (Rev. Mrs.)
Director of Administration

"Train up a child in the way he should go"

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Subject	Page
Introduction	3
Management	4
Vision, Mission, Commitment	4
Articles of Faith	5
Philosophy	6
General Objectives	6
Spiritual Goals & Pledges	7
Admission Policy	8
Admissions Process & Requirement	8
Financial Information	10
Health Safety & Nutrition Policies	11
Program Policies	
School Hours, Extended Care, Re-enrollment	13
School Lunch Program	14
Academic Information	14
School Standards	16
Daily Dismissal	17
Dress Code	18
Discipline Policy	20
Attendance Policy	21
Parent Involvement	22
Parent Communication	23
Open House	24
Bookstore	24
Library	24
Acknowledgement Page	25

INTRODUCTION

This Handbook contains current information regarding admission policies, fees, regulations, and general information about Oasis Christian Academy OCA. It is the policy of the school to give advance notice of change whenever possible, to permit adjustment. However, the administration reserves the right to make changes when it is deemed advisable.

Admission to OCA is a privilege and not a right. Children forfeit this privilege if they do not conform to the standard and ideals of the school. The school may insist on the withdrawal of a child at any time the child or parents (legal guardians) of the child, in the opinion of the administration, do not conform to the policies, regulation and mission of the school.

Oasis Christian Academy is a "sanctuary" where Christian children are free to pray, sing praises and worship God openly without humiliation or ridicule from friends or peers. Students who have or develop ungodly and unrighteous attitudes, practices or lifestyles, including but not limited to, the use of drugs, alcohol, tobacco, immoral conduct, weapons, whether on or off campus, will be subject to dismissal.

Oasis Christian Academy is registered and approved by the Ghana Education Service (GES) with a Grade B status. We are members of Oral Roberts Educational Fellowship and candidates for accreditation by the International Christian Accreditation Association (ICAA).

STATEMENT OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

Oasis Christian Academy does not discriminate based on race, sex, national origin, or physical disability. However, OCA does reserve the right to use appropriate selection criteria in fulfillment of its stated goals and objectives.

MANAGEMENT

Chairman of the Board: Rev. Dr. Kwabena Darko

Director of Administration: Rev. Mrs. Maxine Buckman

Director for Human Resource & IT: Rev. Selwyn Buckman

Acting Principal: Mrs. Obenewaa Asiedu

Assist. Admin./Vice Principal (Pre-School): Rev. Mrs. Sheilla Opoku-Gyan

Vice Principal (3 - 6):

Vice Principal (K - 2): Mrs. Janet Arhin

Vice Principal (Technical): Mr. Charles Dogbe

Our Vision

A center for training Christian leaders from infancy to adulthood to be Ambassadors of Christ in every part of our world.

Vision Scripture

"Train up a child in the way he should go and when he is old, he will not depart from it". *Proverbs* 22:6

Our Mission

To provide a well-rounded, whole person education by training children spiritually, academically, physically, and socially.

Mission Scripture

Luke 2:52

Our Commitment

OCA is evangelistic in our mission. We seek to take the message of salvation to all children from all walks of life, teaching them to love and fear the Lord.

We are committed to developing the whole child for the honor and glory of God in the fulfillment of the Great Commission by providing interaction in Biblical training, spiritual growth, academic mastery, fine arts appreciation, and physical development.

We are committed to help each child reach his/her potential in Christ and exhibit a Christ-centered life directed by the Holy Spirit.

ARTICLES OF FAITH

Oasis Christian Academy maintains the fundamental teaching of God's Word (Bible).

WE BELIEVE:

- ...the Bible is the inspired and only infallible and authoritative rule of faith and conduct (2 Timothy 3:16).
- ...there is one God, eternally co-equal, co-existent, and co-eternal in three persons, Father, Son, and Holy Spirit. (1 John 5:4-6)
- ...in the pre-existence, incarnation, virgin birth, sinless life, miracles, substitutionary death, bodily resurrection, and ascension to Heaven of the Lord Jesus Christ, and His promised second coming to earth in power and glory to rule a thousand year. (1 Peter 2:21-24, 1 Corinthians 15:3, John 3:16).
- ...in the fall of man and the need of regeneration by the Holy Spirit based on grace, through repentance and faith in the blood of Jesus Christ. (Romans 3:21-30; Galatians 4-7).
- ...the redemptive work of Christ on the cross provided healing of the human body in answer to believing prayer. (1 Corinthians. 1:18; Ephesians. 2:16; Colossians. 1:20).
- ...the baptism of the Holy Spirit is provided for all believers and produces the fruit of the Spirit in the believer's life. (Mark 1:8; Act 2:4; Galatians. 5:22-26)
- ...in the sanctifying power of the Holy Spirit, by whose indwelling the Christian is enabled to live a holy life of righteous works, separated from the world, witnessing the saving grace of God through the ministry of the Holy Spirit. (Acts 1:8, 9:31; Romans 15:13)
- ...in the Blessed Hope, the rapture of the Church at Christ's coming. (1Thessalonians 4:18; Rev. 21:20)

- ...in the resurrection of the saved and the lost, the one to everlasting life and the other to everlasting damnation. (John 5:24, 28, 29)
- ...in the unity of believers in our Lord Jesus Christ. (Ephesians 4:3-6).

OUR PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION

Jesus said, "Go teach...". It is our commission to teach children considering these three natural abilities children have:

- 1. Natural humility which makes them easy to reach.
- 2. Natural teachability because their minds are continuously seeking new experiences.
- 3. Natural faith which causes.

Considering these natural abilities, we strive to give children a well-rounded education in the things of God first as in Matthew 6:33 which states, "Seek ye first the Kingdom of God and His righteousness and all these things shall be added unto you." As children are trained to love the Lord and follow the footsteps of Christ, they will desire to be like Jesus who was excellent in all areas.

In combining biblical training with academic, social, moral, and physical education instruction, children will be ambassadors for Christ portraying the character of Christ in the society, in their future workplaces, in their homes, in their schools and wherever they find themselves. Proverbs 22:6 tells us to "Train up a child in the way he should go and when he is old, he will not depart from it".

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

- > To offer a nurturing and Christ-centered environment for our children.
- > To allow children to develop a love for God and His Word.
- To prepare children spiritually, academically, socially, morally and physically for the school's program.
- > To teach children to learn to talk to God themselves with heartfelt prayers rather than memorized ones.
- > To instill Godly character in children by training them "line upon line, precept upon precept," day after day. To train means to exercise, to discipline, to teach and form by practice. When a child is trained, it becomes a part of his character to do what he is taught.

- ➤ To train children to reach their highest potential. No child is left behind. Each child has a God-given potential and we help every child know what their potential is and work on reaching that potential.
- ➤ A Christ-centered environment

SPIRITUAL GOALS

OCA is dedicated to meeting the needs of the whole child: academically, physically, morally, and spiritually. In meeting the spiritual needs of its children, our school sets the following as its objectives:

- 1. The school, first and foremost, acknowledges the eternal value and spiritual worth of each child and therefore shall present the salvation message to each child.
- 2. The school dedicates itself to the spiritual training of its staff to serve as leaders and witnesses of Christ among the children.
- The school conducts semi-annual assessments of the spiritual growth of each child three and older and shall use this information in the planning and development of its programs.
- 4. The school provides adequate, daily spiritual instruction to each of its children, with consideration of the developmental level and background of each.
- 5. The school provides quality instruction in Bible knowledge and facts in order to provide children with training for their spiritual lives.
- 6. The school introduces the children to a chapel program that provides additional spiritual training and provides opportunities for worshipping together.
- 7. The school communicates with the families of its children and provides opportunities for their spiritual edification and growth.

Oasis Christian Academy is an evangelistic school therefore we admit students from every religious background however students are expected to participate in all activities in the school.

PLEDGES

OCA places emphasis upon the greatness of heritage and sacrifices of its heroes. We unashamedly teach the Biblical doctrines of self-discipline, respect for those in authority, obedience to law, and love for our flag and country. The following pledges are respectfully recited by all children every day. Please help your child memorize each one.

Pledge to Ghana Flag

I promise on my honor to be faithful and loyal to Ghana my motherland.

I pledge myself to the service of Ghana, with all my strength and with all my heart.

I promise to hold in high esteem our heritage won for us

Through the blood and toil of our fathers,

And I pledge myself in all things to uphold and defend the good name of Ghana, so help me God.

Pledge to the Christian Flag

I pledge allegiance to the Christian Flag and to the Savior for whose Kingdom it stands. One Savior crucified, risen and coming again, with life and liberty for all who believe.

Pledge to the Bible

I pledge allegiance to the Bible, God's Holy Word, I will make it a lamp unto my feet and a light unto my path. I will hide its words in my heart that I might not sin against God.

ADMISSION POLICY

As a school with high moral standards, we are dedicated to the task of providing quality education and extended care in a Christian environment. OCA is not a corrective institution. Consequently, we ask that you do not enroll your child with the idea that we will reform him/her. We are here to work with the home, but not take the place of parents who have experienced difficulty in fulfilling their role. Our goals are not to reform, but train children in the highest principle of Christian leadership, self-discipline, individual responsibility, personal integrity, and good citizenship. Students and faculty reflect these ideals and standards in their attitude, dress, and appearance. All students and parents are expected to regularly attend and belong to a Bible-believing Church.

Oasis Christian Academy recognizes that it cannot meet the needs of all children. While we love all children some do not adjust to a disciplined environment. In all cases, the school reserves the right to have discretion in their discipline, as **considered appropriate**, and the student is at least five years old. Students who do not cooperate with the total educational process may be placed on probation for a reasonable corrective period or dismissed.

ADMISSION PROCESS AND REQUIREMENTS

Pre-Interview

When a parent calls or visits the school for information, a pre-interview is completed, and admissions requirements are explained.

Admissions Requirements

Student must:

- Have a satisfactory attendance record in the previous school.
- Not have been expelled within the past 12 months.
- Be eligible for re-enrollment at the school last attended.

Parents must:

- Complete a general application form.
- Provide a copy of child's most recent report card and transcript if applicable.
- Provide a copy of child's current immunization records and birth certificate.
- Be in agreement with the vision and mission of OCA.

Age Requirements: (No exceptions will be made.)

- **4yr-Kindergarten**: All children must be 4yrs by September 1 to be admitted. If they do not meet the requirement they must wait until the following year or be admitted to 3yr-Preschool.
- **5yr-Kindergarten**: All children must be 5yrs by September 1 to be admitted. If they do not meet the requirement they must wait until the following year or be admitted to 4yr-kindergarten.
- Grades 1 6: Children must be 6yrs by September 1 and must master the entrance tests to be admitted to Grade 1. For admissions into all grades above Grade 1, students must show that they have passed the previous grade successfully and have mastered the entrance tests.

Interview

A personal parent interview is arranged with the Administrator. All forms must be completed before the interview begins. **Both parents** must be present for the interview. If a parent cannot be at the interview a letter of consent together with a valid photo identification, should be sent directly to the school's email address. A video call will be made with the absent parent during the interview.

Entrance Testing

An entrance test is scheduled for new students from grades 1-6.

Acceptance Procedure

Once the interview has been concluded and all forms completed, the complete application file is reviewed by Administration for an enrollment decision.

Upon enrollment, parents will be requested to sign and date a "Parental Agreement" pledging:

- To support the stated policies of the school.
- To cooperate with school staff.
- To keep financial obligations current.
- To support the discipline policies of the school including, but not limited to, biblical corporal correction.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION/POLICIES

Oasis Christian Academy is a religious institution with an annual budget dependent on tuition, fundraisings, and donations for operating expenses. Faithfulness in keeping tuition accounts current is expedient to maintain curriculum supplies and operating expenses.

Admission Fees - GH¢800

Admission fees are paid immediately admission is granted together with the first semester's fees. Student admission is not complete unless this fee has been paid. Admission fees are non-refundable or transferable. If a parent pays for admission and the child does not come to school that entire school year, admission will be canceled and the parent will have to go through the application process again.

Tuition Fees – see administration office for rates

Tuition may be paid in one of the following ways:

- Annual Parents may pay their total year tuition in advance (receives a 10% discount).
- **Semester** Two equal installments due the first day of the semester and late after the 3rd Week (late fee of Gh¢2 per day charged after the 3rd Week).
- Monthly Some parents may be eligible for this option. If eligible, payment of Tuition will be in ten (10) monthly installments for the whole academic year. Each installment is due by the 1st of the month and late after the 5th day of the month (late fee of Gh¢2.50 per day charged after the 5th day). If payment has not been made by the 20th of the month the account will be placed on probation. If payment is not made within the 10-day probationary period the student is subject to withdrawal.

All accounts with payment not received in the accounts office by the 3rd week of the term will be placed on probation. If payment is not made within the 2-week probationary period, the student is subject to immediate withdrawal and the child will be dropped from the active class list.

If you miss a month's payment (monthly plan only), your child will not be permitted to attend classes the following month without full fees paid for both months (including any late fees). Please do not ask for exceptions to this policy.

Students who are admitted and enroll after the first day of school must pay the full registration fees in addition to the full tuition before they can begin classes.

Tuition fees reserve the scheduled attendance days each semester for your child. If your child is out due to sickness or personal days off, full tuition will still be due. There is no credit for absence whether your child is out for the full month or a partial month. There is no deduction for holidays, Christmas vacation, or Easter holidays, etc.

This policy is stated on your signed contract.

A parent who withdraws his/her child after two (2) weeks of school attendance, is liable to pay the full tuition for the semester. If a child is withdrawn in the middle of the school year, the parent will pay a withdrawal fee of $\phi 50$ per child withdrawn in addition to any other fees that may be owed.

Once the financial agreement has been made between family and school it is deemed highly unethical by the academy for parents to enter into negative discussions with other families concerning the policies of the institution. All questions will be gladly answered to satisfaction by the Administration.

Financial obligation includes, but is not limited to, tuition, curriculum fees, extended (before and/or after school) care, cafeteria/canteen charges, fund-raiser obligations, etc.

Returned Cheque

If an account is past due because of an insufficient funds cheque, or otherwise remains unpaid by the 3rd week of the term, it will be placed on a 2-week probation period. If payment is not made within the ten-day period, the student is subject to immediate withdrawal.

There is a returned cheque charge of GH¢50 for each returned cheque. More than two returned cheques may subject you to paying with cash or bank draft.

Curriculum Fees – see the business office for rates

At OCA we use the Abeka Curriculum, the number one Christian school curriculum in America today together with other curricula deemed appropriate by the administrators. Books for the upcoming year are to be paid for by the end of June to allow time for purchase and shipping. Curriculum fees are assessed each year. These fees are subject to change from year to year and are dependent upon the classroom needs for that year. Children may also be given a list of school supplies at the time of enrolment consisting of items such as crayons and glue that they may use on a daily basis.

HEALTH SAFETY & NUTRITIONAL POLICIES

Medical Guidelines

Our school is for healthy active young children. The school setting is not appropriate environment for children who are ill or those who become ill during the day. Children who are ill require quiet and rest. Children showing symptoms of fever or sickness will not be admitted in the morning or kept throughout the day, according to the standards and guidelines set forth by the state. If the illness prevents the child from participating comfortably in school activities or if the illness results in a greater need for care than the staff can provide without compromising the health, safety and supervision of the other children, attendance for the day must be denied.

If your child comes down with a contagious illness while at school, if fever present, or if your child is too listless to participate in the active school day, you will be asked to make arrangements for your child to be picked up within the hour. We do not have facilities to isolate sick children. It will be up to you to find arrangements for your child's care until he/she is completely well. It is important that you have a set plan if your child becomes ill at school.

If your child is exposed to a communicable disease while at school, you will be notified. We also ask that you report to the school when your child has been exposed outside our care. Diagnosed communicable disease will require a doctor's note, stating that the child is no longer contagious and is able to participate in school activities, before re-admittance. A communicable disease chart is available for your inspection.

Medications

- Written parental permission is given and includes the child's name, type of
 medication, dosage amount as directed on label and times to administer the
 medication. Forms for this purpose are kept in your child's classroom.
 Medication permission must be written out on a daily basis if given on
 consecutive days.
- Any medication brought by parents for the child must be in the original
 container labeled with the child's name, name of medication, dosage amount
 as directed on label, times and directions to administer the medication, and
 include the name of the physician prescribing the medication.
- We do not administer over-the-counter medications without specific and written instructions from the parent, except for teething medication or diaper rash creams. If your child needs cold or fever-reducing medications (except for minor teething fevers) to get through the day, he/she cannot be admitted to the school.

Accidents, Injuries and Safety Measures

Any child, in the event of an accident or injury, will be given first aid immediately, and the parents will be notified. In the events of a critical accident or injury, the child will be taken to the nearest hospital emergency room. We will contact you immediately after emergency medical personnel have been called. A member of the school staff will accompany the child to the hospital and remain until a parent arrives and is informed of the situation. Cost of emergency care is the responsibility of the parent or guardian. Specific procedures are provided for teachers to follow in case of accident, injury or fire. Classrooms and outdoor play areas are inspected daily for safety. The school has an annual fire inspection, and a licensing representative visits the school at least twice yearly to ensure the standards are being met.

Nutrition

We believe that mealtime should be a social time together coupled with learning experience. Staff members serve the children and help create a pleasant, relaxing atmosphere. Our teachers never force children to eat something they react to, but we do encourage them to develop a taste for many different foods. Lunches should offer one-third of the child's daily needs. Included in our regular day program are a variety of nutritious afternoon snacks, which consist of juice or fruits, muffins, crackers, or breads.

School Lunch Program

All meals must be purchased at the school and are *pre-paid per semester*. All students are required to participate in this program. If a student is allergic to any foods, the parents are required to present a medical report from a physician stating what foods the child must not eat and the allergic reaction associated with the food or food product.

Field Trips

As part of the educational process here, the children take field trips to observe what they are taught in class. Fees may be associated with the trip for tickets, entrance fees, transportation, lunch, etc. Children must have their permission slips signed and returned and fees paid in advance (if any) to attend the field trip. You will be informed ahead of time for specifics such as when, where, time and any fees and what to bring. We welcome and encourage parent involvement on field trips. All field trips are carefully planned and closely supervised.

PROGRAM POLICIES

School Hours

The Kindergarten, Elementary, and Middle School academic program begin each day at 7:30am and ends at 3:00pm.

School closes promptly at 3:00pm and teachers are dismissed at 4:00pm. If you must leave your child after 4:00pm please make arrangements with the school office. A late fee of \not 10 will be paid for each child left after 4:00pm. On the alternative, the school has an after-school club for children whose parents are so busy that they cannot come for them before 6:00pm. The amount to be paid for this club is \not 200 per child per month. For further inquiries you may contact the administration office.

Teachers do not receive overtime pay when you are late, and they often have young children at home of their own or plans for the evening that are hampered if they have to stay past 4:00pm. More than three late evenings will subject your child to possible dismissal. Please make arrangements for others to pick up your child if you are running late. Be sure we have the name(s) and driver's license numbers in advance of any individuals you might ask to pick up your children

Messages and Tuition Payments

Any message for your child's teacher should be left with the teacher on duty. Please do not leave any message in students' bags. Please do not send tuition payments with your child. All payments should be made in the administration office, and you should wait for a receipt to be written, whether paying by cheque, cash or electronically.

Rules for Daily Dismissal

- Students may stay in the designated dismissal area until dismissed by a supervising teacher.
- Dress code rules remain in effect in the dismissal area.
- Students should remain orderly and watch for their cars.
- Students still in the school after 4pm will be sent to after-school care and the appropriate charges will apply.

Re-enrollment

Re-enrollment for Kindergarten and Elementary opens in May. Parents may re-enroll their children according to the guidelines given at the time. OCA reserves the right to review the progress of every student and may, at its sole discretion, determine that a student's re-enrolment can be denied even though there is no special breach of conduct. No opening may be reserved for students who have not filled out forms and paid the re-enrollment fee (which serves as an advance part payment for the next academic year's tuition) by the assigned deadline. Re-enrollment fees are non-refundable.

ACADEMIC INFORMATION

Curriculum

Oasis Christian Academy uses the ABeka Christian School curriculum supported with the GES curriculum and other curriculum deemed appropriate by the OCA administration.

Pre-Kindergarten & Kindergarten (4yr & 5yr)

Kindergarten at OCA is an accelerated educational program. The Christian education of children during early childhood must be strategically planned and administered. Maturity rates differ in individuals and cannot be forced. Students must be five years old by September 1 and must score 80% on the Kindergarten readiness test to be enrolled. Children who are not ready for kindergarten will be referred to the preschool program.

Middle School & High School Programs

Our middle school (Grades 7-8) and high school (Grades 9-12) program is an American Traditional Christian school program. The curriculum of choice is the

Abeka Christian school curriculum. High school students take the SAT and ACT tests for placement or entrance into universities worldwide.

Electives

In addition to the successful academic programs mentioned, OCA offers electives to supplement the basic studies. 1-12 students enjoy music, introduction to computers, and structured physical education classes. High school students enjoy Choral, Band, Computing, Art, Family Consumer Sciences, French, Spanish, Keyboarding, Business Math or Consumer Math as electives.

Academic standards

OCA seeks to maintain a high academic standard and students who exhibit academic difficulty will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis by the respective principal. Students who fail more than one subject for the year will be required to repeat the grade level. A student who fails for two consecutive years will be expelled. Any enquiries regarding tutoring should be handled through the respective principal.

Homework

Homework keeps the parent acquainted with the school activity program, as well as the textbooks and curriculum of their own children. Parents MUST keep themselves exposed to the things that influence and mold the character of their children. The school will not be responsible for the academic handicaps a student incurs because parents do not assume the responsibility to supervise homework assignments.

Report Cards/Slips

Report cards are given at the end of each quarter, and it is the parent's responsibility to make sure that they pick up their wards report card, sign and return it before the next quarter. The final report card will be given out to the parent at the end of the school year. No report card will be given to a child or put in the child's bag. All report slips that have not been collected by the 2nd week after the end of the school year will be left in the Administration office till the beginning of the next school year.

Computer Lessons

OCA offers beginning computer lessons for all students. For other computer lessons in specific programs please see the administration for costs involved.

Music Lessons

OCA offers music lessons in piano, drums, trumpet and guitar for elementary students at an extra cost and a general music class as part of the curriculum. For registration and costs involved please see the administration.

Physical Education

The body is the temple of the Holy Spirit (I Corinthians 6:19-20). It was created for the purpose of glorifying God through service to him. While skill development is an

important part of any Physical Education program, character development is far greater. The objective of our PE program is to encourage physical fitness and to develop the whole man (body, soul, and spirit) to serve God, even beyond the game courts (I Thess. 5:23).

No student is excused from the required Physical Education course offered unless a doctor's excuse is presented. Standardized PE uniforms are required for all students 1st through 6th grades, and must be purchased through the school. All students are to be in athletic shoes (tennis or canvas) for physical education. Please label all P.E. clothes and tennis shoes with the student's name at the time of purchase.

Summer Program

OCA offers a 6-week summer camp program every year for students in grades 1-12. This is a day camp where students have a computer class, Bible lessons, music lessons, excursions and many more fun games at a minimum fee. Registration for the summer camp starts in May each year.

Grading

Grading is on a higher standard than the GES because we expect our students to excel in all areas of their lives. The grade mapping is as follows.

Elementary:

90-100	A	Excellent
80-89	В	Good
70-79	C	Average
60-69	D	Below Average
50-59	\mathbf{E}	Poor
Below 50	\mathbf{F}	Fail

Middle & Highschool:

Average	<u>Grade</u>	Grade Points
99-10	A+	4.0
96-98	A	4.0
94-95	A-	3.9
91-93	B+	3.1
88-90	В	3.0
85-87	B-	2.9
82-84	C+	2.1
79-81	C	2.0
77-78	C-	1.9
74-76	D+	1.1
70-73	D	1.0
0-69	F	0.0

SCHOOL STANDARDS

Christian leadership training

All students and staff are required to participate in Bible reading, singing, prayer and daily pledges to the bible, Ghana flag and Christian flag. Weekly chapel meetings are held during which students participate in worship and are exposed to the preaching of God's word by guest and staff speakers. School revival meetings are scheduled throughout the year and parents and guests are welcome to these revival meetings. Attendance is required of the students and staff at chapel and all scheduled revivals. Students must bring their bibles to all devotional, chapel and special meetings. Children in Grades 4 and above have a half-day fasting & prayer session once a month as part of their spiritual training.

Elementary Standards of Conduct

The philosophy and programs of Oasis Christian Academy are built upon the principles of God's Word and as such we must provide an environment conducive to the spiritual growth and development of youth who are not yet mature Christians. The result will be a life consecrated to God and separated from the world.

One of the prerequisites for success in life is self-discipline. Christian discipline is learned by submitting to the authority of the home, school, and church. OCA emphasizes the development of self-discipline and submission to authority in all students and staff.

In order to attain the desired character goals for all students, the following behavior is prohibited for students of OCA at all times and in all places, on or off campus:

- The use of profanity (e.g. Swearing, indecent language, or suggestive speech).
- Malicious destruction or theft of school or others property.
- Talking about or engaging in cheating or lewd behavior
- Possession of personal radios, tape players, disc players, cellular phones, or computer games at school or any school-sponsored activities.
- Possession of any kind of weapon on or off campus or at any school activity.
- Involvement in or creating an impression of involvement in, immoral acts or activities that is contrary to the philosophy and objectives of OCA. (I Thessalonians 5:22)
- Physical or verbal assault on or harassment of another student or staff member of OCA.

Students who commit to any of the above listed infractions, or who are found to be out of harmony with the ideals of work and life of OCA, will be subject to immediate dismissal from the school. Any student, who has destroyed or stolen property from the

school or another student, must pay for the full replacement or repair of such property and will be subject to automatic suspension or dismissal from the school.

The following behaviors are expected of all OCA students at all times:

- All students are expected to act in an orderly and respectful manner, maintaining Christian standards in courtesy, kindness, language morality, honesty: and striving toward unquestionable character in dress, conduct attitudes, and respect for authority.
- Students are expected to comply with all rules set by the teacher and demonstrate respect for teachers and others in authority at all times. Cheating or copying other's work is not tolerated.
- Students are responsible for obtaining homework and returning the assigned work at the right time.
- Once a student arrives on the school compound, he or she may not leave FOR ANY REASON without specific approval from the Principal (this includes going across the street or off campus to any of the local stores or businesses.)

The standards above may appear too strict but while not condemning others who see differently, Oasis Christian Academy believes that these restrictions are specific types of conduct which are detrimental to the standards established as its objectives. Students are expected to abide by these standards throughout their enrollment, whether at school, home, or elsewhere. Those found to be out of harmony may be subject to disciplinary action by the administration of OCA or may be invited to withdraw whenever the general welfare demands it, even though there may be no special breach of conduct.

DRESS CODE

Proper grooming must be taught with other rules of manner and morals. A dress code is conducive to good study habits. All students must dress in the appropriate uniform as required by the dress code standards set by the Administration to maintain the proper emphasis upon the matter of dress. Oasis Christian Academy is an example school for visiting educators, pastors, and prospective families. Discipline problems regarding dress are time-consuming and rob students of instructional assistance. The quality of appearance upgrades the student's attitude toward self, environment and responsibilities. Parents are responsible to see that the students follow the dress code at all times.

The final decision on all questions relating to dress code, hair and conduct shall be made by the administration. If questions arise concerning personal grooming, the staff and administration will be happy to assist the family.

Uniform

All OCA students are required to wear uniforms Monday through Friday. Uniforms must be purchased through the OCA bookshop only. All other brands are not within dress code standards and correction will be given by the administration. This may necessitate parents bringing proper clothing from home or ordering the proper garments to replace what was purchased elsewhere.

GIRLS:

- Sky blue school branded dress w/ white collar should be worn to school on chapel day (Wednesdays) and other important school functions only.
- Sky blue school branded dress w/ Navy Blue collar should be worn on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays only.
- OCA t-shirt and long, straight blue jean skirts should be worn on Fridays only.
- No faded, worn or frayed, over-styled and tight fitting jean skirts should be worn to school or any other school functions.
- Proper undergarments should be worn at all times.
- No makeup should be worn at any time.
- Flat-heeled black shoes and socks should be worn at all times. Athletic shoes (canvas) are to be worn during physical education only and not with uniform.
- Hair should be kept clean, neat and out of the eyes. Hair should be always in corn roll, 2 strand or 3 strand twists. If hair cannot be kept neat then it needs to be cut short. No outrageous hairstyles will be accepted. Braid extensions are not allowed.
- Earrings are restricted to earlobes only and no big loop earrings will be allowed.
- No nail polish or nail extensions are allowed.
- No real or fake tattoos are allowed.

BOYS:

- White school branded shirt with navy blue trousers and Navy Necktie should be worn to school on chapel day (Wednesday) and other important school functions only.
- Light blue school branded shirt with navy blue shorts or trousers should be worn on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays only.
- OCA t-shirt with blue jeans trousers should be worn on Fridays only
- Shirts must be completely tucked in and a belt worn and visible at all times.
 No sagging of trousers is allowed.
- Socks and black shoes must be worn at all times. Athletic shoes (canvas) are to be worn during physical education only and not with uniform.
- T-shirts worn under uniform must be plain and the t-shirt sleeves must not be
 observable below uniform shirt sleeves.
- No faded, worn or frayed tight fitting jeans is allowed.

- Hair must be kept clean, neat, and short without lines and designs. No twists, dreadlocks, or crazy haircuts will be allowed.
- Ear piercing and earrings are not permitted.
- No real or fake tattoos.

Students who violate the dress code will receive a dress code citation which a parent must sign and return it to school. Failure to return the citation with parent signature on the following day will result in detention.

Students who constantly receive dress code citations may be sent home. Further violations will result in suspension or dismissal.

Personal Hygiene

Each student is encouraged to develop independence in his/her habits. We make every effort to help each student attain an appreciation for, and a feeling of responsibility for cleanliness and neat appearance. Students wash their hands before and after meals and after using the toilet. Please encourage your child to continue these requirements at home. They will become healthy habits. Good table manners and cleanliness are encouraged. Healthy habits such as brushing teeth, washing hands after restroom visit, getting plenty sleep, and eating nutritious foods are discussed in the classroom and parents should make sure that their children practice these at home.

DISCIPLINE POLICY

Our aim of discipline is not to punish a behavior or an act but to bring the student to a level of being able to control him/herself from engaging in the wrong act or behavior. Because God endorses discipline in his word, Oasis Christian Academy is a disciplined school that follows biblical commands regarding respect for all authority. Students are taught to obey their parents, civil authorities, and those who are over them spiritually in the Lord (I Thess. 5:12-13). In the Christian school, the teacher, principal, and administrator stand in the place of the parents, representing them; therefore, the directives of the Bible about child-parent relationships are applicable during school hours.

Effective discipline is a necessary key ingredient for a good learning environment. Students are expected to abide by the biblical principle, "Do unto others as you would have them do unto you" Matt. 7:8.

Prior to expecting good behavior from children, they must first know exactly what is expected of them. Standards of good behavior are clearly communicated to the children at their level of understanding. Children are taught by example through fair and consistent rules. In all discipline, we use guidance methods in an atmosphere of firmness, understanding, love, and acceptance. Misbehavior is constantly dealt with as soon as possible. Methods of correction include the following:

• Talking with the student

- Withdrawal of privilege (time out)
- Detention an assigned after-school
- Conference with parents
- Suspension

Teachers strive to ensure a climate of love and concern in the classroom to promote Godly character and behavior. They also joyfully and consistently give praise for hard-earned successes and positive encouragement throughout the day. Students learn self-control and the habits of walking quietly in line, keeping their hands to themselves and respecting others. Students must at all times conduct themselves in a manner becoming of a Christian. **GRIPING AND TALKING BACK IS NOT TOLERATED!**

If your child comes home complaining about a policy of discipline, please follow this procedure:

- Give the staff the benefit of the doubt.
- Realize that his/her reporting may be emotionally biased without all the information.
- Realize that we have reasons for all rules and that they are enforced without favor.
- Support the administration and call us or visit us for all the facts.

The administration or staff shall handle actions that evidence disrespect, indifference, dishonesty, abuse of permission and other disruptive behavior. OCA has a **zero-tolerance** for violence, fighting or threats of any kind. This includes possession of anything that could be used as a weapon. Students may be expelled for such behaviors.

Detentions are served the day following the incident or misbehavior, from $4:00-4:30\,\mathrm{pm}$. Detentions require parental signatures to be served. Unsigned detention slips may result in the issuance of another detention. Students who receive excessive detentions will be placed on Disciplinary Probation.

Once a student has been placed on disciplinary probation, all future offences, regardless of nature may subject him or her to immediate dismissal from OCA. If a student on probation completes a semester without any misconducts or offences, he/she will be removed from the disciplinary probation.

Attendance at Oasis Christian Academy is a privilege and not a right. Students forfeit this privilege if they do not conform to the standards and ideals of work and life at OCA.

ATTENDANCE POLICY

Once a student is enrolled in OCA, the student is expected to attend school for at least 90% of the term. In certain instances a child may be ill and may not attend school. In such cases the parents/guardians will have to notify the school of the absence. If a child misses school due to an illness for 50% or more of the term and the school is notified the child will repeat the class. If no notification is given the child will be considered withdrawn.

A student who misses school due to an illness for more than 5 days must acquire a medical verification of illness and report to the administration office upon returning to school.

Excuses for absence must be written and must contain the full name of the student, reason for absence, dates to be absent and signature of parent or guardian.

If a student must leave the school for a doctor's appointment or any other reason, the parent must inform the school on arrival in the morning and permission must be obtained from the administration before the child is taken out.

Lateness

Three (3) tardiness to school equals an absence. Absences due to excessive tardiness will be considered unexcused. Anytime your child is late, you should accompany the student to the class and explain the absence to the teacher. There are certain emergency situations that would waive the disciplinary process.

Frequent lateness is grounds for expulsion from OCA.

Transportation

Parents are responsible for their student's transportation both ways. A parent or legal guardian must pick up the child unless arrangements have been made ahead of time for another <u>adult</u> to pick up the child. Identification will be necessary before a student is released to an adult other than a parent.

PARENT INVOLVEMENT

The bible declares that our children belong to God and he has entrusted each parent with the children in the home. As parents, it is your God given responsibility to train up these children according to Biblical principles. Although every parent is not a teacher by profession, every parent is responsible for seeing that his children receive the right training. This cannot be done without parental involvement. These days the norm is to pass-off children to someone deemed more capable (teacher) leaving the children at the mercy of that someone without follow-up. The staff depends on the active support of the parents, which is more than just a one-time assurance that anything the school deems best will be supported without question. Here are some ways parents can be active in their children's training in addition to those already indicated in the handbook.

PARENT TEACHER MEETINGS (PTM): This includes all meetings with teachers throughout the year made up of open house, orientation, and personal conferences with teachers or administrative staff.

PARENT INFORMATION BOARD: An informative news board can be found at the entrance of the administration office. It contains important information regarding the school. All notices to parents are posted there as well.

PARENT INFORMATIVE NOTICES: On a frequent basis notices are put in the children's bags or pinned in their uniforms for parents. We kindly ask that you always check your child's bag for any notices to parents. SMS messages are also sent to parents' mobile phones on a frequent basis. A parent WhatsApp group is also created for each class where informative messages are posted.

PARENT TEACHER FELLOWSHIP (PTF): The PTF is a fellowship comprising of teachers, staff, and parents of OCA. The sole purpose of this fellowship is to create an atmosphere of cordiality between parents and staff of OCA. These fellowship meetings also serve as a platform for parents to assist the school and its staff members through fundraising and special functions. Every parent of OCA is automatically a member of the PTF and is expected to be at all PTF meetings.

PARENT COMMUNICATION

How Parents Can Help

Your attitude towards your child's experience at OCA will greatly affect his or her adjustment to our program. There are many ways in which you can help:

- Be patient with your child in adjusting to the school. Some children have no trouble adjusting to a new environment, new situations and experiences. Others however may need longer periods of time to accept new surroundings and people.
- Talking to your child about the day. They may have learned a new song, scripture, story or activity. Sharing their activities through communicating with your child will help him/her to verbalize thoughts and feelings.
- If your child has an upsetting experience such as an illness or any significant family trauma, please let us know. We want to help your child work out his/her difficulty through prayer, play, art and sympathetic conversation.
- Watch over what your child sees in movies, television, and social media. Be vigilant in maintaining a Godly home.
- Pray with your child and lift up our school in prayer.
- Please call the office if you have any questions or concerns regarding your child or our program.
- Drop your suggestions in our mailbox at the security entrance of the school.
- Pay your child's fees on time.

Communication

An integral part of our program is parent-staff relationships. This interaction between home and school may take many forms and includes, but not limited to the following communication.

- Parents are always welcome to visit the school.
- Bulletin Boards are placed in the classrooms and the office area and contain information of interest to parents.
- Progress reports, physical assessments, and spiritual assessments are recorded for children three years and older. Progress reports are sent home every term. These are sent home for your signature and should <u>be returned</u> promptly.
- Parent/staff meetings are held twice yearly or as necessary.
- We welcome notes from parents informing your child's teachers of any disruption in their regular schedule such as in the amount of sleep, health related concerns, disturbing emotional events, etc., that may affect your child during the school day.

Open House

An Open house is held at the end of the school year in June. All Parents are required to be at the open house where parents pick up their children's progress report cards and textbooks. At this session they will also discuss their children's progress with the teachers.

Bookshop

Oasis Christian Academy operates a bookshop where all school textbooks, stationary and school uniforms are sold at a reduced cost. The bookshop also has in stock other Christian literature such as Bibles, Christian books, music etc. for children and the entire family. Proceeds from the bookshop are used for other expenses of the school. For the convenience of students, the OCA bookshop is open Monday-Friday from 8:00am to 4:00pm.

Library

Students in grades 1-6 regularly visit the school library. Books not returned by the due date are charged a fine of Gh¢1 a day (weekends excluded). Lost or damaged books must be paid for by the student.

Birthdays

A child's birthday is a very exciting event, and we are happy to help the child celebrate this occasion. However, birthday celebrations at school are suspended.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT PAGE

This handbook contains all current information regarding admission policies, financial and programs policies, curriculum, and the philosophy and objectives of the school. Parents must sign an agreement that they have read all policies and information contained in this handbook and agree to abide by the policies and standards set forth.

PARENT/STUDENT HANDBOOK 2022-2023 ACADEMIC YEAR

Please print Parent's / Guardian's Names:			
We acknowledge that We have received, read, and understand the policies of Oasis			
Christian Academy as outlined in the Parent/Student Handbook for the 2011-2012			
Academic Year. We understand that this handbook may be modified at any time a			
the discretion of the Board of directors of Oasis Christian academy.			
Student's Signature or Name Grade			
Parent's or Guardian's Signature Date:			

This page must be returned to the office and will be kept on file.